

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

First Regular Session, 102nd GENERAL ASSEMBLY

THIRTY-THIRD DAY, MONDAY, MARCH 6, 2023

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

Speaker Plocher in the Chair.

Prayer by Representative Dirk Deaton.

Almighty God, Creator of all things, we the members of the Missouri House of Representatives beseech You at this hour for guidance and wisdom. We are weak, but Thou art strong, so Lord, we pray the will of this body would align with Your sovereign will.

While we speak of “liberty” and “freedom” on this hallowed floor as it relates to our temporal existence, may we come to know the truest form of liberty and freedom that is found in You. A freedom and liberty that is eternal and secured by Your sovereign hand.

While we take great joy in meeting one another on this floor, by Your grace, may we one day meet again in that City where the Lamb is the light.

And the House says, “Amen.”

The Pledge of Allegiance to the flag was recited.

The Journal of the thirty-second day was approved as printed.

HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

Representative Jones offered House Resolution No. 820.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following Senate Bills were read the second time:

SB 34, relating to elective social studies courses on the Bible.

SS SCS SBs 45 & 90, relating to MO HealthNet, with an emergency clause.

SS SCS SB 72, relating to judicial privacy, with penalty provisions.

SS#2 SCS SB 96, relating to votes in political subdivisions.

SS SCS SB 127, relating to state designations marked by the department of transportation.

SS SB 139, relating to the designation of a historic region.

SB 186, relating to criminal offenses involving teller machines, with penalty provisions.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Committee on Fiscal Review, Chairman Houx reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Fiscal Review, to which was referred **HCS HJR 37**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (5): Houx, Hudson, Kelly (141), Owen and Pollitt

Noes (2): Baringer and Fogle

Absent (0)

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Fiscal Review, to which was referred **HCS HBs 702, 53, 213, 216, 306 & 359**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (5): Houx, Hudson, Kelly (141), Owen and Pollitt

Noes (2): Baringer and Fogle

Absent (0)

THIRD READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HCS HBs 702, 53, 213, 216, 306 & 359, relating to the operation of certain law enforcement agencies, was taken up by Representative Christ.

On motion of Representative Christ, **HCS HBs 702, 53, 213, 216, 306 & 359** was read the third time and passed by the following vote:

AYES: 113

Allen	Amato	Atchison	Baker	Banderman
Baringer	Billington	Black	Boggs	Bonacker
Boyd	Bromley	Brown 149	Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway
Burger	Busick	Butz	Byrnes	Casteel
Chappell	Christ	Christofanelli	Coleman	Cook
Copeland	Cupps	Davidson	Davis	Deaton
Diehl	Dinkins	Evans	Falkner	Farnan
Francis	Gallick	Gragg	Gregory	Griffith
Haden	Haffner	Haley	Hardwick	Hausman
Henderson	Hicks	Hinman	Houx	Hovis
Hudson	Hurlbert	Jones	Justus	Kalberloh
Keathley	Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Knight	Lewis 6
Lonsdale	Lovasco	Marquart	Matthiesen	Mayhew
McGaugh	McGill	McMullen	Murphy	Myers
O'Donnell	Oehlerking	Owen	Parker	Patterson

Perkins	Peters	Pollitt	Pouche	Reedy
Reuter	Richey	Riggs	Riley	Roberts
Sander	Sassmann	Sauls	Schnelting	Schulte
Schwadron	Seitz	Sharpe 4	Shields	Smith 155
Smith 163	Sparks	Stacy	Stephens	Stinnett
Taylor 48	Thomas	Thompson	Titus	Toalson Reisch
Van Schoiack	Veit	Voss	Waller	West
Wilson	Wright	Mr. Speaker		

NOES: 040

Adams	Anderson	Appelbaum	Aune	Barnes
Bland Manlove	Bosley	Brown 27	Brown 87	Burton
Clemens	Doll	Ealy	Fogle	Fountain Henderson
Gray	Hein	Ingle	Johnson 23	Lavender
Lewis 25	Mackey	Mann	Merideth	Mosley
Phifer	Plank	Proudie	Quade	Sharp 37
Smith 46	Steinhoff	Strickler	Taylor 84	Terry
Unsicker	Walsh Moore	Weber	Windham	Woods

PRESENT: 003

Crossley	Johnson 12	Nurrenbern
----------	------------	------------

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 007

Aldridge	Bangert	Burnett	Collins	Morse
Nickson-Clark	Young			

VACANCIES: 000

Speaker Plocher declared the bill passed.

PERFECTION OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 70, relating to school protection officers, was taken up by Representative Dinkins.

On motion of Representative Dinkins, the title of **HB 70** was agreed to.

Representative Nurrenbern offered **House Amendment No. 1**.

House Amendment No. 1

AMEND House Bill No. 70, Page 1, Section 160.665, Line 2, by deleting all of the said line and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"~~elementary or secondary school teachers or~~ administrators **or other designated school**"; and

Further amend said bill, page, and section, Line 5, by deleting the said line and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"duties of the ~~teacher or~~ administrator **or other designated school personnel**. Any"; and

Further amend said bill and section, Page 2, Lines 25 to 33, by deleting all of the said lines and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"6. Any ~~[teacher or]~~ administrator **or other designated school personnel** of an elementary or secondary school who seeks to be designated as a school protection officer shall request such designation in writing, and submit it to the superintendent of the school district ~~[which]~~ **that** employs ~~[him or her]~~ **such individual** as ~~[a teacher or]~~ **an administrator or other designated school personnel**. Along with this request, any ~~[teacher or]~~ administrator **or other designated school personnel** seeking to carry a concealed firearm on school property shall also submit proof that ~~[he or she]~~ **such individual** has a valid concealed carry endorsement or permit, and all ~~[teachers and]~~ administrators **and other designated school**"; and

Further amend said bill, page, and section, Line 38, by deleting all of the said line and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"7. No school district may designate ~~[a teacher or]~~ **an administrator or other designated**"; and

Further amend said bill, page, and section, Line 44, by deleting all of the said line and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"8. **(1)** Any school district that designates ~~[a teacher or]~~ **an administrator or other**"; and

Further amend said bill and section, Page 3, Line 64, by deleting all of the said line and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"11. Before a school district may designate ~~[a teacher or]~~ **an administrator or other**"; and

Further amend said bill, page, and section, Line 71, by inserting after all of the said line the following:

"**12. As used in this section, "school personnel" shall not include a classroom teacher.**"; and

Further amend said bill, Page 5, Section 571.107, Line 83, by deleting all of the said line and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"permit is ~~[a teacher or]~~ **an administrator or other designated school personnel** of an"; and

Further amend said bill, Page 9, Section 571.215, Line 79, by deleting the said line and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"concealed carry permit is ~~[a teacher or]~~ **an administrator or other designated school personnel**"; and

Further amend said bill, Page 12, Section 590.010, Lines 12 to 13, by deleting all of the said lines and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"(6) "School protection officer", an ~~[elementary or secondary school teacher or]~~ administrator **or other designated school personnel** who has been designated as a school"; and

Further amend said bill and page, Section 590.205, Lines 16 to 17, by deleting all of the said lines and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"the resulting report to be forwarded to the school district where the ~~[elementary school teacher or]~~ administrator **or other designated school personnel** is seeking to be"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

Representative Nurrenbern moved that **House Amendment No. 1** be adopted.

Which motion was defeated.

Representative Allen offered **House Amendment No. 2.**

House Amendment No. 2

AMEND House Bill No. 70, Page 3, Section 160.665, Line 71, by inserting after said section and line the following:

"571.030. 1. A person commits the offense of unlawful use of weapons, except as otherwise provided by sections 571.101 to 571.121, if he or she knowingly:

- (1) Carries concealed upon or about his or her person a knife, a firearm, a blackjack or any other weapon readily capable of lethal use into any area where firearms are restricted under section 571.107; or
- (2) Sets a spring gun; or
- (3) Discharges or shoots a firearm into a dwelling house, a railroad train, boat, aircraft, or motor vehicle as defined in section 302.010, or any building or structure used for the assembling of people; or
- (4) Exhibits, in the presence of one or more persons, any weapon readily capable of lethal use in an angry or threatening manner; or
- (5) Has a firearm or projectile weapon readily capable of lethal use on his or her person, while he or she is intoxicated, and handles or otherwise uses such firearm or projectile weapon in either a negligent or unlawful manner or discharges such firearm or projectile weapon unless acting in self-defense; or
- (6) Discharges a firearm within one hundred yards of any occupied schoolhouse, courthouse, or church building; or
- (7) Discharges or shoots a firearm at a mark, at any object, or at random, on, along or across a public highway or discharges or shoots a firearm into any outbuilding; or
- (8) Carries a firearm or any other weapon readily capable of lethal use into any church or place where people have assembled for worship, or into any election precinct on any election day, or into any building owned or occupied by any agency of the federal government, state government, or political subdivision thereof; or
- (9) Discharges or shoots a firearm at or from a motor vehicle, as defined in section 301.010, discharges or shoots a firearm at any person, or at any other motor vehicle, or at any building or habitable structure, unless the person was lawfully acting in self-defense; or
- (10) Carries a firearm, whether loaded or unloaded, or any other weapon readily capable of lethal use into any school, onto any school bus, or onto the premises of any function or activity sponsored or sanctioned by school officials or the district school board; or
- (11) Possesses a firearm while also knowingly in possession of a controlled substance that is sufficient for a felony violation of section 579.015.

2. Subdivisions (1), (8), and (10) of subsection 1 of this section shall not apply to the persons described in this subsection, regardless of whether such uses are reasonably associated with or are necessary to the fulfillment of such person's official duties except as otherwise provided in this subsection. Subdivisions (3), (4), (6), (7), and (9) of subsection 1 of this section shall not apply to or affect any of the following persons, when such uses are reasonably associated with or are necessary to the fulfillment of such person's official duties, except as otherwise provided in this subsection:

- (1) All state, county and municipal peace officers who have completed the training required by the police officer standards and training commission pursuant to sections 590.030 to 590.050 and who possess the duty and power of arrest for violation of the general criminal laws of the state or for violation of ordinances of counties or municipalities of the state, whether such officers are on or off duty, and whether such officers are within or outside of the law enforcement agency's jurisdiction, or all qualified retired peace officers, as defined in subsection 12 of this section, and who carry the identification defined in subsection 13 of this section, or any person summoned by such officers to assist in making arrests or preserving the peace while actually engaged in assisting such officer;
- (2) Wardens, superintendents and keepers of prisons, penitentiaries, jails and other institutions for the detention of persons accused or convicted of crime;
- (3) Members of the Armed Forces or National Guard while performing their official duty;
- (4) Those persons vested by Article V, Section 1 of the Constitution of Missouri with the judicial power of the state and those persons vested by Article III of the Constitution of the United States with the judicial power of the United States, the members of the federal judiciary;

- (5) Any person whose bona fide duty is to execute process, civil or criminal;
- (6) Any federal probation officer or federal flight deck officer as defined under the federal flight deck officer program, 49 U.S.C. Section 44921, regardless of whether such officers are on duty, or within the law enforcement agency's jurisdiction;
- (7) Any state probation or parole officer, including supervisors and members of the parole board;
- (8) Any corporate security advisor meeting the definition and fulfilling the requirements of the regulations established by the department of public safety under section 590.750;
- (9) Any coroner, deputy coroner, medical examiner, or assistant medical examiner;
- (10) Any municipal or county prosecuting attorney or assistant prosecuting attorney; circuit attorney or assistant circuit attorney; municipal, associate, or circuit judge; or any person appointed by a court to be a special prosecutor who has completed the firearms safety training course required under subsection 2 of section 571.111;
- (11) Any member of a fire department or fire protection district who is employed on a full-time basis as a fire investigator and who has a valid concealed carry endorsement issued prior to August 28, 2013, or a valid concealed carry permit under section 571.111 when such uses are reasonably associated with or are necessary to the fulfillment of such person's official duties; and
- (12) Upon the written approval of the governing body of a fire department or fire protection district, any paid fire department or fire protection district member who is employed on a full-time basis and who has a valid concealed carry endorsement issued prior to August 28, 2013, or a valid concealed carry permit, when such uses are reasonably associated with or are necessary to the fulfillment of such person's official duties.

3. Subdivisions (1), (5), (8), and (10) of subsection 1 of this section do not apply when the actor is transporting such weapons in a nonfunctioning state or in an unloaded state when ammunition is not readily accessible or when such weapons are not readily accessible. Subdivision (1) of subsection 1 of this section does not apply to any person nineteen years of age or older or eighteen years of age or older and a member of the United States Armed Forces, or honorably discharged from the United States Armed Forces, transporting a concealable firearm in the passenger compartment of a motor vehicle, so long as such concealable firearm is otherwise lawfully possessed, nor when the actor is also in possession of an exposed firearm or projectile weapon for the lawful pursuit of game, or is in his or her dwelling unit or upon premises over which the actor has possession, authority or control, or is traveling in a continuous journey peaceably through this state. Subdivision (10) of subsection 1 of this section does not apply if the firearm is otherwise lawfully possessed by a person while traversing school premises for the purposes of transporting a student to or from school, or possessed by an adult for the purposes of facilitation of a school-sanctioned firearm-related event or club event.

4. Subdivisions (1), (8), and (10) of subsection 1 of this section shall not apply to any person who has a valid concealed carry permit issued pursuant to sections 571.101 to 571.121, a valid concealed carry endorsement issued before August 28, 2013, or a valid permit or endorsement to carry concealed firearms issued by another state or political subdivision of another state.

5. Subdivisions (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), and (10) of subsection 1 of this section shall not apply to persons who are engaged in a lawful act of defense pursuant to section 563.031.

6. Notwithstanding any provision of this section to the contrary, the state shall not prohibit any state employee from having a firearm in the employee's vehicle on the state's property provided that the vehicle is locked and the firearm is not visible. This subsection shall only apply to the state as an employer when the state employee's vehicle is on property owned or leased by the state and the state employee is conducting activities within the scope of his or her employment. For the purposes of this subsection, "state employee" means an employee of the executive, legislative, or judicial branch of the government of the state of Missouri.

7. (1) Subdivision (10) of subsection 1 of this section shall not apply to a person who is a school officer commissioned by the district school board under section 162.215 or who is a school protection officer, as described under section 160.665.

(2) Nothing in this section shall make it unlawful for a student to actually participate in school-sanctioned gun safety courses, student military or ROTC courses, or other school-sponsored or club-sponsored firearm-related events, provided the student does not carry a firearm or other weapon readily capable of lethal use into any school, onto any school bus, or onto the premises of any other function or activity sponsored or sanctioned by school officials or the district school board.

8. A person who commits the crime of unlawful use of weapons under:

- (1) Subdivision (2), (3), (4), or (11) of subsection 1 of this section shall be guilty of a class E felony;
- (2) Subdivision (1), (6), (7), or (8) of subsection 1 of this section shall be guilty of a class B misdemeanor, except when a concealed weapon is carried onto any private property whose owner has posted the premises as being off-limits to concealed firearms by means of one or more signs displayed in a conspicuous place of a minimum size

of eleven inches by fourteen inches with the writing thereon in letters of not less than one inch, in which case the penalties of subsection 2 of section 571.107 shall apply;

(3) Subdivision (5) or (10) of subsection 1 of this section shall be guilty of a class A misdemeanor if the firearm is unloaded and a class E felony if the firearm is loaded;

(4) Subdivision (9) of subsection 1 of this section shall be guilty of a class B felony, except that if the violation of subdivision (9) of subsection 1 of this section results in injury or death to another person, it is a class A felony.

9. Violations of subdivision (9) of subsection 1 of this section shall be punished as follows:

(1) For the first violation a person shall be sentenced to the maximum authorized term of imprisonment for a class B felony;

(2) For any violation by a prior offender as defined in section 558.016, a person shall be sentenced to the maximum authorized term of imprisonment for a class B felony without the possibility of parole, probation or conditional release for a term of ten years;

(3) For any violation by a persistent offender as defined in section 558.016, a person shall be sentenced to the maximum authorized term of imprisonment for a class B felony without the possibility of parole, probation, or conditional release;

(4) For any violation which results in injury or death to another person, a person shall be sentenced to an authorized disposition for a class A felony.

10. Any person knowingly aiding or abetting any other person in the violation of subdivision (9) of subsection 1 of this section shall be subject to the same penalty as that prescribed by this section for violations by other persons.

11. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no person who pleads guilty to or is found guilty of a felony violation of subsection 1 of this section shall receive a suspended imposition of sentence if such person has previously received a suspended imposition of sentence for any other firearms- or weapons-related felony offense.

12. As used in this section "qualified retired peace officer" means an individual who:

(1) Retired in good standing from service with a public agency as a peace officer, other than for reasons of mental instability;

(2) Before such retirement, was authorized by law to engage in or supervise the prevention, detection, investigation, or prosecution of, or the incarceration of any person for, any violation of law, and had statutory powers of arrest;

(3) Before such retirement, was regularly employed as a peace officer for an aggregate of fifteen years or more, or retired from service with such agency, after completing any applicable probationary period of such service, due to a service-connected disability, as determined by such agency;

(4) Has a nonforfeitable right to benefits under the retirement plan of the agency if such a plan is available;

(5) During the most recent twelve-month period, has met, at the expense of the individual, the standards for training and qualification for active peace officers to carry firearms;

(6) Is not under the influence of alcohol or another intoxicating or hallucinatory drug or substance; and

(7) Is not prohibited by federal law from receiving a firearm.

13. The identification required by subdivision (1) of subsection 2 of this section is:

(1) A photographic identification issued by the agency from which the individual retired from service as a peace officer that indicates that the individual has, not less recently than one year before the date the individual is carrying the concealed firearm, been tested or otherwise found by the agency to meet the standards established by the agency for training and qualification for active peace officers to carry a firearm of the same type as the concealed firearm; or

(2) A photographic identification issued by the agency from which the individual retired from service as a peace officer; and

(3) A certification issued by the state in which the individual resides that indicates that the individual has, not less recently than one year before the date the individual is carrying the concealed firearm, been tested or otherwise found by the state to meet the standards established by the state for training and qualification for active peace officers to carry a firearm of the same type as the concealed firearm."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

Representative Copeland offered **House Amendment No. 1 to House Amendment No. 2.**

House Amendment No. 1
to
House Amendment No. 2

AMEND House Amendment No. 2 to House Bill No. 70, Page 1, Line 1, by inserting after the number "70," the following:

"Page 1, Section A, Line 3, by inserting after said section and line the following:

"43.539. 1. As used in this section, the following terms mean:

- (1) "Applicant", a person who:
 - (a) Is actively employed by or seeks employment with a qualified entity;
 - (b) Is actively licensed or seeks licensure with a qualified entity;
 - (c) Actively volunteers or seeks to volunteer with a qualified entity;
 - (d) Is actively contracted with or seeks to contract with a qualified entity; or
 - (e) Owns or operates a qualified entity;
- (2) "Care", the provision of care, treatment, education, training, instruction, supervision, or recreation to children, the elderly, or disabled persons;
- (3) "Missouri criminal record review", a review of criminal history records and sex offender registration records under sections 589.400 to 589.425 maintained by the Missouri state highway patrol in the Missouri criminal records repository;
- (4) "Missouri Rap Back program", any type of automatic notification made by the Missouri state highway patrol to a qualified entity indicating that an applicant who is employed, licensed, or otherwise under the purview of that entity has been arrested for a reported criminal offense in Missouri as required under section 43.506;
- (5) "National criminal record review", a review of the criminal history records maintained by the Federal Bureau of Investigation;
- (6) "National Rap Back program", any type of automatic notification made by the Federal Bureau of Investigation through the Missouri state highway patrol to a qualified entity indicating that an applicant who is employed, licensed, or otherwise under the purview of that entity has been arrested for a reported criminal offense outside the state of Missouri and the fingerprints for that arrest were forwarded to the Federal Bureau of Investigation by the arresting agency;
- (7) "Patient or resident", a person who by reason of age, illness, disease, or physical or mental infirmity receives or requires care or services furnished by an applicant, as defined in this section, or who resides or boards in, or is otherwise kept, cared for, treated, or accommodated in a facility as defined in section 198.006, for a period exceeding twenty-four consecutive hours;
- (8) "Qualified entity", a person, business, or organization that provides care, care placement, or educational services for children, the elderly, or persons with disabilities as patients or residents, including a business or organization that licenses or certifies others to provide care or care placement services;
- (9) "Youth services agency", any agency, school, or association that provides programs, care, or treatment for or exercises supervision over minors.

2. The central repository shall have the authority to submit applicant fingerprints to the National Rap Back program to be retained for the purpose of being searched against future submissions to the National Rap Back program, including latent fingerprint searches. Qualified entities may conduct Missouri and national criminal record reviews on applicants and participate in Missouri and National Rap Back programs for the purpose of determining suitability or fitness for a permit, license, or employment, and shall abide by the following requirements:

- (1) The qualified entity shall register with the Missouri state highway patrol prior to submitting a request for screening under this section. As part of the registration, the qualified entity shall indicate if it chooses to enroll applicants in the Missouri and National Rap Back programs;
- (2) Qualified entities shall notify applicants subject to a criminal record review under this section that the applicant's fingerprints shall be retained by the state central repository and the Federal Bureau of Investigation and shall be searched against other fingerprints on file, including latent fingerprints;
- (3) Qualified entities shall notify applicants subject to enrollment in the National Rap Back program that the applicant's fingerprints, while retained, may continue to be compared against other fingerprints submitted or

retained by the Federal Bureau of Investigation, including latent fingerprints;

(4) The criminal record review and Rap Back process described in this section shall be voluntary and conform to the requirements established in the National Child Protection Act of 1993, as amended, and other applicable state or federal law. As a part of the registration, the qualified entity shall agree to comply with state and federal law and shall indicate so by signing an agreement approved by the Missouri state highway patrol. The Missouri state highway patrol may periodically audit qualified entities to ensure compliance with federal law and this section;

(5) A qualified entity shall submit to the Missouri state highway patrol a request for screening on applicants covered under this section using a completed fingerprint card;

(6) Each request shall be accompanied by a reasonable fee, as provided in section 43.530, plus the amount required, if any, by the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the national criminal record review and enrollment in the National Rap Back program in compliance with the National Child Protection Act of 1993, as amended, and other applicable state or federal laws;

(7) The Missouri state highway patrol shall provide, directly to the qualified entity, the applicant's state criminal history records that are not exempt from disclosure under chapter 610 or otherwise confidential under law;

(8) The national criminal history data shall be available to qualified entities to use only for the purpose of screening applicants as described under this section. The Missouri state highway patrol shall provide the applicant's national criminal history record information directly to the qualified entity;

(9) The determination whether the criminal history record shows that the applicant has been convicted of or has a pending charge for any crime that bears upon the fitness of the applicant to have responsibility for the safety and well-being of children, the elderly, or disabled persons shall be made solely by the qualified entity. This section shall not require the Missouri state highway patrol to make such a determination on behalf of any qualified entity;

(10) The qualified entity shall notify the applicant, in writing, of his or her right to obtain a copy of any criminal record review, including the criminal history records, if any, contained in the report and of the applicant's right to challenge the accuracy and completeness of any information contained in any such report and obtain a determination as to the validity of such challenge before a final determination regarding the applicant is made by the qualified entity reviewing the criminal history information. A qualified entity that is required by law to apply screening criteria, including any right to contest or request an exemption from disqualification, shall apply such screening criteria to the state and national criminal history record information received from the Missouri state highway patrol for those applicants subject to the required screening; and

(11) Failure to obtain the information authorized under this section, with respect to an applicant, shall not be used as evidence in any negligence action against a qualified entity. The state, any political subdivision of the state, or any agency, officer, or employee of the state or a political subdivision shall not be liable for damages for providing the information requested under this section.

3. The criminal record review shall include the submission of fingerprints to the Missouri state highway patrol, who shall conduct a Missouri criminal record review, including closed record information under section 610.120. The Missouri state highway patrol shall also forward a copy of the applicant's fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal record review.

4. The applicant subject to a criminal record review shall provide the following information to the qualified entity:

(1) Consent to obtain the applicant's fingerprints, conduct the criminal record review, and participate in the Missouri and National Rap Back programs;

(2) Consent to obtain the identifying information required to conduct the criminal record review, which may include, but not be limited to:

- (a) Name;
- (b) Date of birth;
- (c) Height;
- (d) Weight;
- (e) Eye color;
- (f) Hair color;
- (g) Gender;
- (h) Race;
- (i) Place of birth;
- (j) Social Security number; and

(k) The applicant's photo.

5. Any information received by an authorized state agency or a qualified entity under the provisions of this section shall be used solely for internal purposes in determining the suitability of an applicant. The dissemination of criminal history information from the Federal Bureau of Investigation beyond the authorized state agency or related governmental entity is prohibited. All criminal record check information shall be confidential, and any person who discloses the information beyond the scope allowed is guilty of a class A misdemeanor.

6. A qualified entity enrolled in either the Missouri or National Rap Back program shall be notified by the Missouri state highway patrol that a new arrest has been reported on an applicant who is employed, licensed, or otherwise under the purview of the qualified entity. Upon receiving the Rap Back notification, if the qualified entity deems that the applicant is still serving in an active capacity, the entity may request and receive the individual's updated criminal history record. This process shall only occur if:

(1) The entity has abided by all procedures and rules promulgated by the Missouri state highway patrol and Federal Bureau of Investigation regarding the Missouri and National Rap Back programs;

(2) The individual upon whom the Rap Back notification is being made has previously had a Missouri and national criminal record review completed for the qualified entity under this section [~~within the previous six years~~]; and

(3) The individual upon whom the Rap Back notification is being made is a current employee, licensee, or otherwise still actively under the purview of the qualified entity.

7. The Missouri state highway patrol shall make available or approve the necessary forms, procedures, and agreements necessary to implement the provisions of this section.

43.540. 1. As used in this section, the following terms mean:

(1) "Applicant", a person who:

(a) Is actively employed by or seeks employment with a qualified entity;

(b) Is actively licensed or seeks licensure with a qualified entity;

(c) Actively volunteers or seeks to volunteer with a qualified entity; or

(d) Is actively contracted with or seeks to contract with a qualified entity;

(2) "Missouri criminal record review", a review of criminal history records and sex offender registration records pursuant to sections 589.400 to 589.425 maintained by the Missouri state highway patrol in the Missouri criminal records repository;

(3) "Missouri Rap Back program", shall include any type of automatic notification made by the Missouri state highway patrol to a qualified entity indicating that an applicant who is employed, licensed, or otherwise under the purview of that entity has been arrested for a reported criminal offense in Missouri as required under section 43.506;

(4) "National criminal record review", a review of the criminal history records maintained by the Federal Bureau of Investigation;

(5) "National Rap Back program", shall include any type of automatic notification made by the Federal Bureau of Investigation through the Missouri state highway patrol to a qualified entity indicating that an applicant who is employed, licensed, or otherwise under the purview of that entity has been arrested for a reported criminal offense outside the state of Missouri and the fingerprints for that arrest were forwarded to the Federal Bureau of Investigation by the arresting agency;

(6) "Qualified entity", an entity that is:

(a) An office or division of state, county, or municipal government, including a political subdivision or a board or commission designated by statute or approved local ordinance, to issue or renew a license, permit, certification, or registration of authority;

(b) An office or division of state, county, or municipal government, including a political subdivision or a board or commission designated by statute or approved local ordinance, to make fitness determinations on applications for state, county, or municipal government employment; or

(c) Any entity that is authorized to obtain criminal history record information under 28 CFR 20.33.

2. The central repository shall have the authority to submit applicant fingerprints to the National Rap Back program to be retained for the purpose of being searched against future submissions to the National Rap Back program, including latent fingerprint searches. Qualified entities may conduct Missouri and national criminal record reviews on applicants and participate in Missouri and National Rap Back programs for the purpose of determining suitability or fitness for a permit, license, or employment, and shall abide by the following requirements:

(1) The qualified entity shall register with the Missouri state highway patrol prior to submitting a request for screening under this section. As part of such registration, the qualified entity shall indicate if it chooses to enroll their applicants in the Missouri and National Rap Back programs;

(2) Qualified entities shall notify applicants subject to a criminal record review under this section that the applicant's fingerprints shall be retained by the state central repository and the Federal Bureau of Investigation and shall be searched against other fingerprints on file, including latent fingerprints;

(3) Qualified entities shall notify applicants subject to enrollment in the National Rap Back program that the applicant's fingerprints, while retained, may continue to be compared against other fingerprints submitted or retained by the Federal Bureau of Investigation, including latent fingerprints;

(4) The criminal record review and Rap Back process described in this section shall be voluntary and conform to the requirements established in Pub. L. 92-544 and other applicable state or federal law. As a part of the registration, the qualified entity shall agree to comply with state and federal law and shall indicate so by signing an agreement approved by the Missouri state highway patrol. The Missouri state highway patrol may periodically audit qualified entities to ensure compliance with federal law and this section;

(5) A qualified entity shall submit to the Missouri state highway patrol a request for screening on applicants covered under this section using a completed fingerprint card;

(6) Each request shall be accompanied by a reasonable fee, as provided in section 43.530, plus the amount required, if any, by the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the national criminal record review and enrollment in the National Rap Back program in compliance with applicable state or federal laws;

(7) The Missouri state highway patrol shall provide, directly to the qualified entity, the applicant's state criminal history records that are not exempt from disclosure under chapter 610 or are otherwise confidential under law;

(8) The national criminal history data shall be available to qualified entities to use only for the purpose of screening applicants as described under this section. The Missouri state highway patrol shall provide the applicant's national criminal history record information directly to the qualified entity;

(9) This section shall not require the Missouri state highway patrol to make an eligibility determination on behalf of any qualified entity;

(10) The qualified entity shall notify the applicant, in writing, of his or her right to obtain a copy of any criminal record review, including the criminal history records, if any, contained in the report, and of the applicant's right to challenge the accuracy and completeness of any information contained in any such report and to obtain a determination as to the validity of such challenge before a final determination regarding the applicant is made by the qualified entity reviewing the criminal history information. A qualified entity that is required by law to apply screening criteria, including any right to contest or request an exemption from disqualification, shall apply such screening criteria to the state and national criminal history record information received from the Missouri state highway patrol for those applicants subject to the required screening; and

(11) Failure to obtain the information authorized under this section with respect to an applicant shall not be used as evidence in any negligence action against a qualified entity. The state, any political subdivision of the state, or any agency, officer, or employee of the state or a political subdivision shall not be liable for damages for providing the information requested under this section.

3. The criminal record review shall include the submission of fingerprints to the Missouri state highway patrol, who shall conduct a Missouri criminal record review, including closed record information under section 610.120. The Missouri state highway patrol shall also forward a copy of the applicant's fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal record review.

4. The applicant subject to a criminal record review shall provide the following information to the qualified entity:

(1) Consent to obtain the applicant's fingerprints, conduct the criminal record review, and participate in the Missouri and National Rap Back programs;

(2) Consent to obtain the identifying information required to conduct the criminal record review, which may include, but not be limited to:

- (a) Name;
- (b) Date of birth;
- (c) Height;
- (d) Weight;
- (e) Eye color;
- (f) Hair color;
- (g) Gender;
- (h) Race;

- (i) Place of birth;
- (j) Social Security number; and
- (k) The applicant's photo.

5. Any information received by an authorized state agency or a qualified entity pursuant to the provisions of this section shall be used solely for internal purposes in determining the suitability of an applicant. The dissemination of criminal history information from the Federal Bureau of Investigation beyond the authorized state agency or related governmental entity is prohibited. All criminal record check information shall be confidential and any person who discloses the information beyond the scope allowed is guilty of a class A misdemeanor.

6. A qualified entity enrolled in either the Missouri or National Rap Back programs shall be notified by the Missouri state highway patrol that a new arrest has been reported on an applicant who is employed, licensed, or otherwise under the purview of the qualified entity. Upon receiving the Rap Back notification, if the qualified entity deems that the applicant is still serving in an active capacity, the entity may request and receive the individual's updated criminal history record. This process shall only occur if:

(1) The agency has abided by all procedures and rules promulgated by the Missouri state highway patrol and Federal Bureau of Investigation regarding the Missouri and National Rap Back programs;

(2) The individual upon whom the Rap Back notification is being made has previously had a Missouri and national criminal record review completed for the qualified entity under this section [~~within the previous six years~~]; and

(3) The individual upon whom the Rap Back notification is being made is a current employee, licensee, or otherwise still actively under the purview of the qualified entity.

7. The highway patrol shall make available or approve the necessary forms, procedures, and agreements necessary to implement the provisions of this section."; and

Further amend said bill,"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Copeland, **House Amendment No. 1 to House Amendment No. 2** was adopted.

Representative Patterson moved the previous question.

Which motion was adopted by the following vote:

AYES: 106

Allen	Amato	Atchison	Baker	Banderman
Billington	Black	Boggs	Bonacker	Boyd
Bromley	Brown 149	Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger
Busick	Byrnes	Casteel	Chappell	Christ
Christofanelli	Coleman	Cook	Copeland	Cupps
Davidson	Davis	Deaton	Diehl	Dinkins
Evans	Falkner	Farnan	Francis	Gallick
Gragg	Gregory	Griffith	Haden	Haffner
Haley	Hardwick	Hausman	Henderson	Hicks
Hinman	Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert	Jones
Justus	Kalberloh	Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Knight
Lewis 6	Lonsdale	Lovasco	Matthiesen	Mayhew
McGaugh	McGill	McMullen	Murphy	Myers
O'Donnell	Oehlerking	Parker	Patterson	Perkins
Peters	Pollitt	Pouche	Reedy	Reuter
Richey	Riggs	Riley	Roberts	Sander
Sassmann	Schnelting	Schulte	Schwadron	Seitz
Sharpe 4	Shields	Smith 155	Smith 163	Sparks
Stacy	Stephens	Stinnett	Taylor 48	Thomas

Thompson	Titus	Toalson Reisch	Van Schoiack	Veit
Voss	Waller	West	Wilson	Wright
Mr. Speaker				

NOES: 046

Adams	Anderson	Appelbaum	Aune	Bangert
Baringer	Barnes	Bland Manlove	Bosley	Brown 27
Brown 87	Burton	Butz	Clemens	Crossley
Doll	Ealy	Fogle	Fountain Henderson	Gray
Hein	Ingle	Johnson 12	Johnson 23	Lavender
Lewis 25	Mackey	Mann	Merideth	Mosley
Nurrenbern	Phifer	Plank	Proudie	Quade
Sauls	Smith 46	Steinhoff	Strickler	Taylor 84
Terry	Unsicker	Walsh Moore	Weber	Windham
Woods				

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 011

Aldridge	Burnett	Collins	Houx	Keathley
Marquart	Morse	Nickson-Clark	Owen	Sharp 37
Young				

VACANCIES: 000

On motion of Representative Allen, **House Amendment No. 2, as amended**, was adopted.

On motion of Representative Dinkins, **HB 70, as amended**, was ordered perfected and printed.

HCS HBs 133 & 583, relating to a tax credit for certain live entertainment events, was taken up by Representative Hudson.

On motion of Representative Hudson, the title of **HCS HBs 133 & 583** was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Hudson, **HCS HBs 133 & 583** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Hudson, **HCS HBs 133 & 583** was ordered perfected and printed.

HB 202, relating to industrial hemp, was taken up by Representative Francis.

On motion of Representative Francis, the title of **HB 202** was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Francis, **HB 202** was ordered perfected and printed.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Committee on Elementary and Secondary Education, Chairman Pollitt reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Elementary and Secondary Education, to which was referred **HB 809**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (12): Bonacker, Byrnes, Christofanelli, Haffner, Kelley (127), Lewis (6), Mackey, Mann, Nurrenbern, Pollitt, Stacy and Terry

Noes (0)

Absent (5): Baker, Brown (87), Gragg, Hurlbert and Toalson Reisch

Special Committee on Tax Reform, Chairman Baker reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Tax Reform, to which was referred **HJR 33** and **HJR 45**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (10): Baker, Davidson, Deaton, Hinman, Hudson, Hurlbert, Justus, McMullen, Peters and Richey

Noes (3): Lavender, Merideth and Strickler

Absent (1): Butz

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Tax Reform, to which was referred **SS SB 25**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Baker, Deaton, Hinman, Hurlbert, Justus, Lavender, McMullen, Merideth and Richey

Noes (0)

Absent (5): Butz, Davidson, Hudson, Peters and Strickler

Committee on Transportation Accountability, Chairman Mayhew reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Transportation Accountability, to which was referred **HB 778**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (10): Bromley, Busick, Hurlbert, Johnson (23), Kalberloh, Mayhew, Pouche, Veit, Voss and Waller

Noes (2): Adams and Butz

Absent (2): Burton and Taylor (48)

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Transportation Accountability, to which was referred **HB 882** and **HB 518**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (10): Adams, Bromley, Busick, Butz, Hurlbert, Kalberloh, Taylor (48), Veit, Voss and Waller

Noes (0)

Absent (4): Burton, Johnson (23), Mayhew and Pouche

Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, Chairman Francis reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HB 81**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Baker, Bland Manlove, Francis, Griffith, Haden, Houx, Mackey, Myers and Smith (46)

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Copeland

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HBs 117, 343 & 1091**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Baker, Bland Manlove, Francis, Griffith, Haden, Houx, Mackey, Myers and Smith (46)

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Copeland

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HB 131**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Baker, Bland Manlove, Francis, Griffith, Haden, Houx, Mackey, Myers and Smith (46)

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Copeland

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HB 132**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Baker, Bland Manlove, Francis, Griffith, Haden, Houx, Mackey, Myers and Smith (46)

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Copeland

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Administrative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 356**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Baker, Bland Manlove, Francis, Griffith, Haden, Houx, Mackey, Myers and Smith (46)

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Copeland

Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, Chairman Knight reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 475**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (8): Buchheit-Courtway, Burger, Hudson, Knight, Lavender, McGirl, Owen and Schnelting

Noes (0)

Absent (2): Bosley and Unsicker

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HBs 556 & 581**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (8): Bosley, Buchheit-Courtway, Burger, Knight, Lavender, McGirl, Owen and Schnelting

Noes (1): Hudson

Absent (1): Unsicker

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HB 587**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Bosley, Buchheit-Courtway, Burger, Hudson, Knight, Lavender, McGirl, Owen and Schnelting

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Unsicker

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HBs 700 & 445**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (7): Buchheit-Courtway, Burger, Hudson, Knight, McGirl, Owen and Schnelting

Noes (2): Bosley and Lavender

Absent (1): Unsicker

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Rules - Legislative Oversight, to which was referred **HCS HBs 816 & 660**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (7): Buchheit-Courtway, Burger, Hudson, Knight, McGirl, Owen and Schnelting

Noes (2): Bosley and Lavender

Absent (1): Unsicker

REFERRAL OF HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTIONS - RULES

The following House Joint Resolution was referred to the Committee indicated:

HCS HJR 33 & 45 - Rules - Legislative Oversight

REFERRAL OF HOUSE BILLS - RULES

The following House Bills were referred to the Committee indicated:

HCS HBs 178, 179 & 401 - Rules - Regulatory Oversight

HCS HB 316 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

HCS HBs 348, 285 & 407 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

HB 349 - Rules - Legislative Oversight

HCS HB 467 - Rules - Regulatory Oversight

HCS HB 536 - Rules - Regulatory Oversight

HCS HBs 651, 479 & 647 - Rules - Regulatory Oversight

HCS HB 725 - Rules - Legislative Oversight

HCS HB 766 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

HCS HB 809 - Rules - Regulatory Oversight

HCS HBs 882 & 518 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

HCS HBs 913 & 428 - Rules - Legislative Oversight

HB 978 - Rules - Legislative Oversight

HCS HB 1019 - Rules - Administrative Oversight

REFERRAL OF SENATE BILLS - RULES

The following Senate Bill was referred to the Committee indicated:

HCS SS SB 25 - Rules - Legislative Oversight

ADJOURNMENT

On motion of Representative Burger, the House adjourned until 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, March 7, 2023.

COMMITTEE HEARINGS

BUDGET

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 3.

Subcommittee chair presentations of adopted amendments in the Subcommittee on Appropriations: Education, and the Subcommittee on Appropriations: Health, Mental Health, and Social Services.

Followup questions for departments regarding FY 24 operating budgets and FY 23 supplemental budget (HB 15).

BUDGET

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 3.

Followup questions for departments regarding FY 24 operating budgets and FY 23 supplemental budget (HB 15).

BUDGET

Thursday, March 9, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 3.

Followup questions for departments regarding FY 24 operating budgets and FY 23 supplemental budget (HB 15).

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: HB 822, HB 1034, HB 1335

Executive session will be held: HB 906, HB 719, HB 1058

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), Joint Hearing Room (117).

Executive session will be held: HB 870

CONSENT AND HOUSE PROCEDURE

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 5:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HR 268, HR 490, HR 492

Executive session will be held: HR 268, HR 490, HR 492, HCS HB 90

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Added HB 90. Removed HR 269.

AMENDED

CORRECTIONS AND PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 1.

Executive session will be held: HB 119, HB 372, HB 382, HB 420, HB 550, HB 693, HB 1133, HB 1028

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 8:15 AM, House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 414

Executive session will be held: HB 675, HB 939, HB 1038

ELECTIONS AND ELECTED OFFICIALS

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 12:00 PM or upon morning recess (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 6.

Executive session will be held: HJR 19

ELECTIONS AND ELECTED OFFICIALS

Tuesday, March 14, 2023, 12:00 PM or upon morning recess (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 6.

Executive session will be held: HJR 19

CANCELLED

ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 627, HB 482, HB 232

Executive session will be held: HB 497

EMERGING ISSUES

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: HJR 23, HB 282, HB 249, HB 37, HB 699

Executive session will be held: HB 336, HB 532, HB 555, HB 751, HB 1120

Added HB 1120.

AMENDED

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 12:00 PM or upon morning recess (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 5.

Executive session will be held: HB 586, HB 521, HB 584, HB 234, HB 1109

FISCAL REVIEW

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 9:45 AM, House Hearing Room 4.

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Pending bill referral.

CANCELLED

FISCAL REVIEW

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 9:45 AM, House Hearing Room 4.

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Pending bill referral.

CANCELLED

FISCAL REVIEW

Thursday, March 9, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 4.

Pending bill referral.

CANCELLED

GENERAL LAWS

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 4:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 353, HCR 21, HB 1165, HCR 22

Executive session will be held: HB 543, HB 1008, HB 1015

Added HCR 22.

AMENDED

GOVERNMENT EFFICIENCY AND DOWNSIZING

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: HB 542, HB 1118, HB 514, HB 1263

Executive session will be held: HB 995, HB 986, HB 471

Added HB 471.

AMENDED

HEALTHCARE REFORM

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 4:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 464

Executive session will be held: HB 777

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 247, HB 876, HB 437

Executive session will be held: HB 625, HB 764

PENSIONS

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 9:00 AM, House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HB 257

Executive session will be held: HB 155, HB 222, HB 496

Time change.

CORRECTED

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION AND LICENSING

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 12:00 PM or upon morning recess (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 45, HB 48, HB 270

RULES - LEGISLATIVE OVERSIGHT

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 4:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 5.

Executive session will be held: HCS HB 197, HCS SS SB 25

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Added SB 25. Changed time and location.

AMENDED

RULES - LEGISLATIVE OVERSIGHT

Thursday, March 9, 2023, 8:45 AM, House Hearing Room 4.

Executive session will be held: HCS HJRs 33 & 45, HB 349, HCS HB 725, HCS HBs 913 & 428, HB 978, HCS HB 183, HCS HB 419

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

Added HB 183 and HB 419.

AMENDED

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON ELECTION CONTESTS

Thursday, March 9, 2023, 10:30 AM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HEC 1

Discussion of future action by the committee.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HB 168, HB 1012, HB 1099, HB 1161

CANCELLED

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON TAX REFORM

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 12:00 PM or upon morning recess (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 1141, HB 1252, HJR 7, HJR 11

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON TOURISM

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 4:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later), House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: HB 920, HB 999

Executive session will be held: HCR 13, HB 736, HB 1117

Missouri Division of Tourism presentation on annual report.

TRANSPORTATION ACCOUNTABILITY

Thursday, March 9, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 1366, HB 1370

TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 8:30 AM, Joint Hearing Room (117).

Executive session will be held: HB 152, HB 369, HB 443, HB 894, HB 424, HB 207

VETERANS

Tuesday, March 7, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 1.

Executive session will be held: HB 869, HB 1154

WORKFORCE AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 8:00 AM, Joint Hearing Room (117).

Executive session will be held: HB 733, HB 960

Presentation by the Department of Higher Education and Workforce Development.

HOUSE CALENDAR

THIRTY-FOURTH DAY, TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 2023

HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION

HCS HB 461 - Riggs

HCS HB 909 - Haffner

HB 585 - Owen

HCS HB 454 - Coleman

HCS HB 668 - Houx

HB 44 - Haley

HB 67 - Terry

HB 94 - Schwadron

HB 487 - Francis

HB 528 - Murphy

HB 547 - Roberts

HB 1021 - Baker

HB 1055 - Mayhew

HB 827 - Christofanelli

HB 490 - Sharpe (4)

HB 677 - Copeland

HCS HBs 919 & 1081 - Schnelting

HCS HBs 47 & 638 - Haley

HB 630 - Knight

HCS HBs 802, 807 & 886 - Dinkins

HCS HBs 816 & 660 - Deaton

HCS HBs 700 & 445 - Hardwick

HCS HBs 556 & 581 - Houx

HB 81 - Veit

HB 131 - Griffith

HCS HB 356 - McGirl

HCS HB 587 - Owen

HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION - INFORMAL

HCS HB 253 - Pollitt

HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION - CONSENT

(03/02/2023)

HB 129 - Griffith
HCS HB 130 - Griffith
HB 283 - Kelly (141)
HB 644 - Francis
HB 923 - Hovis

HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTIONS FOR THIRD READING

HCS HJR 37 - Mayhew

HOUSE BILLS FOR THIRD READING - INFORMAL

HCS HB 715, (Fiscal Review 3/1/23) - Kelly (141)

HOUSE BILLS FOR THIRD READING - CONSENT

HB 402 - Henderson

ACTIONS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE IV, SECTION 27

HCS HB 3001 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3002 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3003 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3004 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3005 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3006 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3007 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3008 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3009 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3010 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3011 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3012 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3013 - Smith (163)
SCS HCS HB 3017 - Smith (163)
SCS HCS HB 3018 - Smith (163)
SCS HCS HB 3019 - Smith (163)
SS SCS HCS HB 3020 - Smith (163)

(This page intentionally left blank)